
Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on February 15, 2017 at 
the Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                          141 
 

1 
 

The meeting was called to order by Board president Kathy Kolupanowich at 7:00 p.m. 

ATTENDANCE 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Ms. Michele Arminio 

Mr. Ken Chiarella 

Ms. Jill DeMaio 

Ms. Kathy Kolupanowich 

Ms. Patricia Lang 

Ms. Dawn Quarino 

Mr. Steve Riback 

Mr. Frank Russo 

 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT  

Mr. Marvin Braverman 

 

JAMESBURG BOARD MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE PRESENT 

Mr. Paul Rutsky 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Dr. Michael G. Kozak, Superintendent of Schools 

Dr. Dori Alvich, Assistant Superintendent of Schools 

Mr. Michael C. Gorski, Business Administrator/Board Secretary 

 

STUDENT BOARD MEMBER REPRESENTATIVES’ PRESENT 

Mr. Syed Ateeb Jamal 

Ms. Stefani Scalisi 

 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC     76 

 

After the Pledge of Allegiance and roll call, the Board Secretary read the following statement: 

 

In accordance with the provisions of the New Jersey Open Public Meetings Law, the Monroe 

Township Board of Education has caused notice of this meeting to be published by having the 

date, time and place thereof posted February 10, 2017: 

 

1. At all schools, 

2. Home News Tribune, 

3. Cranbury Press, and 

4. Filed with the Clerk of the municipality. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

A motion was made by Mr. Riback and seconded by Ms. Arminio to approve the minutes for the 

Public Board of Education Meeting held on December 14, 2016. Motion carried with Mr. 

Chiarella and Ms. Lang recusing.  

 



Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on February 15, 2017 at 
the Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                          141 
 

2 
 

A motion was made by Mr. Riback and seconded by Mr. Rutsky to approve the minutes for the 

Closed Session Meeting held on December 14, 2016. Motion carried with Mr. Chiarella and Ms. 

Lang recusing.  

 

A motion was made by Mr. Chiarella and seconded by Mr. Riback to approve the minutes for the 

Public Board of Education Organization Meeting held on January 4, 2017. Motion carried.  

 

A motion was made by Mr. Chiarella and seconded by Mr. Riback to approve the minutes for the 

Closed Session Meeting held on January 4, 2017. Motion carried. 

 

SUPPORT STAFF OF THE YEAR PRESENTATION  

Dr. Kozak, Ms. Kolupanowich, Dr. Alvich and Mr. Gorski congratulated the “Support Staff of 

the Year” award recipients. Dr. Kozak read a brief statement why they were nominated and 

presented each with a plaque. The recipients of the award are as follows: 

 

Jennifer Burkshot     Applegarth   Kathleen Watlington Barclay Brook 

Lois Castrovince      Brookside   Lou Ann Pecorino Central Office 

Susan Finkelstein     High School   Raymond Durski         Middle School 

Christine Brix          Mill Lake                                   Laura Tessler               Oak Tree 

Suzanne Giglio        Transportation   Ed Butkiewicz             Woodland 

 

STUDENT BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORT 

Mr. Jamal reported the following:  

Several high school students will be attending the DECA State Tournament in Atlantic City next 

week; representatives from the American Legion Oratorical Contest visited the high school last 

week to hear speeches from the participants; a member of the Wrestling Team obtained his 100th 

win and the Girls Bowling Team won the GMC Championship and ended their season 

undefeated.  

 

Ms. Scalisi reported the following: 

The Boys Bowling Team won the Group III State Sectional Championship; both the Girls and 

Boys Basketball Teams have advanced in the GMC Tournament; a Dress Drive will be held on 

February 23rd; the high school play at the Coffee House will be held on February 22nd at 6:30 

p.m.; and senior members of the AVID program attended a tour at Kean University. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Ms. Jill DeMaio, Chairperson of the Curriculum Committee, stated that the committee met 

earlier this evening. Ms. DeMaio reported that the committee reviewed all the clubs a well as 

their activity and attendance. Ms. DeMaio further reported that the committee reviewed and 

recommended the following new clubs: Monroe Corporation Club; Girl Up Club; Animation 

Club; Muslim Student Alliance Club; and Innovations & Entrepreneur Club. 

 

A motion was made by Ms. DeMaio and seconded by Mr. Riback that the Monroe Township 

Board of Education establish an Innovations & Entrepreneur Club. Roll Call 9-0-0-0-1. Motion 

carried.    

 



Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on February 15, 2017 at 
the Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                          141 
 

3 
 

Ms. DeMaio stated that the committee also discussed a proposal for a Summer Band Program for 

Grades 5-9.  Ms. DeMaio added that there will be three different levels of the program offered and 

each session will cost participants $75.00 each.    

 

Mr. Ken Chiarella, Chairperson of the Buildings, Grounds/Transportation Committee stated that 

the committee met on February 6th and reviewed the proposed land transfer at Church Road. Mr. 

Chiarella reported that the committee discussed the need to replace food service equipment (walk-

in refrigerators and ovens) at both the Middle School & Woodland. Mr. Chiarella further reported 

that the committee discussed and reviewed the lot design for the proposed Route 522 land transfer.  

 

Mr. Paul Rutsky, Chairperson of the Finance Committee, reported that the committee met on 

February 13th and discussed the HP Inc. Self-maintainer Agreement. Mr. Rutsky explained that the 

districts in house technology staff will be trained to repair Hewlett Packard equipment, saving 

equipment down time, additionally the district will benefit by receiving reimbursements from 

Hewlett Packard for the repairs completed.  

 

Mr. Rutsky reported that the committee was updated on the recent testimony at the Senate Select 

Hearing on Funding Fairness and Monroe’s inequity in state aid funding. Mr. Rutsky added that 

Mr. Gorski, Dr. Kozak and Mayor Tamburro along with some board members will be providing 

testimony at the Assembly Education Committee on February 23rd in Trenton.   

 

Mr. Rutsky reported that the committee reviewed the upcoming Budget where Mr. Gorski 

indicated that things are on track. 

Mr. Rutsky stated that the committee reviewed the 2015/2016 A41 and A42 which indicated that 

was nearly a break even with Jamesburg only owing Monroe approximately $29,000.00. Mr. 

Rutsky added that it is projected that with the decreasing trend in actual tuition charge combined 

with Jamesburg’s increase in tuition paid for 16/17 there is a strong indication that in 16/17 Monroe 

may owe Jamesburg.    

PUBLIC FORUM  

 

Prakash Parab 33 Dayna Drive – inquired about state aid and what administration is expecting 

from the testimony at the Senate Committee. Dr. Kozak responded that the district should know the 

state aid award after the Governor’s Budget Address in late February. Dr. Kozak stated that 

administration will continue the push for fair funding until we receive our fair share.  

Stephen Manfre 12 Belmont Court – inquired about the status of wetlands study on Church Road and 

how far the district is willing to go with the fight for state aid. Ms. Kolupanowich responded that she 

and Dr. Kozak will be speaking about state aid initiatives later in the evening in their reports. Mr. 

Gorski responded that the wetlands mapping study indicated that the wetlands exposure on the 

property has not materially changed from what has been previously mapped by the township. Mr. 

Gorski further reported that the turtle habitat study has been suspended due to the dormancy of the 

turtles and will reconvene in the spring.                                     

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT  



Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on February 15, 2017 at 
the Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                          141 
 

4 
 

Dr. Kozak stated that he along with Mr. Gorski, and a few members of the Board were asked to 

present at the Assembly Education Committee on School Funding Fairness next week. Dr. Kozak 

stated that another district has brought legal action against the state and administration will be 

watching that case closely. Dr. Kozak further reported that he has started a new television show 

for Channel 28 titled Focus on Education. Lastly, Dr. Kozak reported that he attended a meeting 

with Ms. Lang regarding charter schools. Dr. Kozak stated that he along with approximately ten 

other districts expressed the financial problems that these schools are causing on public schools.    

 

PERSONNEL 

A motion was made by Mr. Riback and seconded by Ms. Arminio that Personnel Items A- CC be 

approved by consent roll call. Roll Call 9-0-0-0-1. Motion carried with Ms. Arminio and Mr. 

Rutsky abstaining on Item CC – Substitutes.  The vote included the Jamesburg Representative 

where appropriate. A copy of the Personnel section of the Superintendent’s Report is attached to 

the official set of minutes.  

 

BOARD ACTION 

A motion was made by Ms. Lang and seconded by Mr. Riback that Board Action Items A-I be 

approved by consent roll call. Ms. Arminio inquired when the enrollment numbers and costs 

associated with the Community Education Program will be available. Dr. Kozak responded that 

he hopes to have clarification around June at which time the committee will revisit the validity of 

the program. Roll Call 8-0-1-0-1. Motion carried with Mr. Rutsky abstaining on all items. A copy 

of the Board Action section of the Superintendent’s Report is attached to the official set of minutes.  

 

BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT/RECOMMENDATIONS 

A motion was made by Mr. Riback and seconded by Mr. Chiarella that Board Action Items A- E 

be approved by consent roll call. Mr. Chiarella thanked Ms. Arminio for serving as the NJSBA 

Delegate Representative for Monroe Township adding that he is confident that she will serve the 

Board well. Roll Call 9-0-0-0-1. Motion carried with Ms. DeMaio, Ms. Lang and Mr. Riback 

recusing on Item B – Travel Resolution and Mr. Rutsky abstaining on Items A, B & C.  A copy of 

the Board Action section of the Business Administrator’s Report is attached to the official set of 

minutes.  

 

BOARD PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

Ms. Kolupanowich reported that administration and members of the Board were invited to attend 

a NJ State Senate Select Committee Hearing on School Funding Fairness at Middlesex County 

College. Ms. Kolupanowich reported that the following spoke on behalf of Monroe Township: 

Senator Linda Greenstein; Assemblyman Dan Benson; Mayor Tamburro; Wayne Hamilton; 

Michael Gorski; Dr. Kozak; Ken Chiarella and herself. Mr. Riback, Gary Busman and Andy Paluri 

also attended to lend support for Monroe. Ms. Kolupanowich added that they spoke about the 

uniqueness of Monroe, the growth in the township and the lack of funding from the state.   

Ms. Kolupanowich reported that they were also invited to testify at the Assembly Education 

Committee on February 23rd regarding the same topic. 

 

Ms. Kolupanowich further reported that both she and Mr. Ken Chiarella were invited to speak with 

Senator Greenstein, Assemblyman Danial Benson and Assemblyman Wayne DeAngelo to discuss 

district funding needs, the creation of the Ad Hoc Committee on Fair Funding and various ways 



Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on February 15, 2017 at 
the Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                          141 
 

5 
 

that they can work on the funding fight. Ms. Kolupanowich added that they are currently in the 

process of inviting community members to join the committee.  

 

Mr. Russo inquired about the status of the letter writing campaign. Ms. Kolupanowich responded 

that the committee may consider a petition instead of the letter writing campaign as it may be able 

to gather more residents. Mr. Chiarella added that he requested that Mr. Russo be a member of the 

Ad Hoc Committee so he will be able to contribute and express his ideas.    

 

OTHER BOARD OF EDUCATION BUSINESS 

Mr. Riback spoke in regards to an article in the Star Ledger regarding charter schools. Mr. Riback 

stated that charter schools are not held to the same standards as public schools. Mr. Riback added 

that according to the article there is an investigation for a charter school in Red Bank for possible 

discrimination or segregation.  

 

Ms. Arminio thanked administration and those board members who spoke at the senate hearing 

committee for their efforts. Ms. Arminio congratulated the recipients of the support staff of the 

year award and thanked all the support staff for all that they do to help make Monroe wonderful. 

  

Ms. DeMaio stated that she and Ms. Lang attended the NJ Educational Policy Agenda for the next 

Gubernatorial Administration Conference last week. Ms. DeMaio stated that topics covered were 

the effects of the lack of school funding the last eight years; what it’s doing to districts; Governor 

Christie’s proposal for school funding; and NJ charter school funding. 

 

Ms. Lang reported that she recently attended the NJSBA County Meeting which covered the 

effects that charter schools are having on school districts. Ms. Lang stated that Monroe currently 

spends over $100,000.00 a year for charter schools. Ms. Lang further reported that there are 

districts that are spending millions of dollars and are laying off teachers and eliminating programs 

due to the amount they are paying for the charter schools. Mr. Riback added that charter schools 

do not receive decreases in state aid like public schools do.    

 

PUBLIC FORUM 

Krishna Tekale 11 Jake Place – stated that the community is willing to support administration 

with the state aid fight by showing up in numbers. Mr. Tekale would like to partake in the letter 

writing committee. 

Lisa Poye Damore 3 Fallow Way – stressed her concerns relating to the lack of communication 

from the Middle School regarding an invitation that was distributed without the location of meeting 

and the difficulty in finding that information. Ms. Damore also stated that the calendar on district 

website lacks information. Ms. Damore added that there is a lack of communication from the 

middle school regarding the new date for high school orientation for students that will be making 

confirmation on the date that is currently scheduled. 

Chrissy Skurbe 21 Preakness Drive – stated that she hopes that the policy committee and the Board 

doesn’t limit what the public can and cannot say during public forums. Next, Ms. Skurbe inquired 

if the district is looking at purchasing two properties and would they be told before purchase is 

completed. Ms. Kolupanowich responded that any negotiations for purchasing property is held in 

closed session until the purchase is made then the information will be made public. Ms. Skurbe 



Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on February 15, 2017 at 
the Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                          141 
 

6 
 

inquired if the district has money in the Budget to purchase land. Mr. Gorski responded that there 

is $975,000 in a capital reserve account which could be used however, most land that is purchased 

by a school district is done by a bond sale through a bond referendum.    

Prakash Parab 33 Dayna Drive – inquired if the township can initiate a pilot program like 

Woodbridge did. Dr. Kozak responded that the township can, but the township would lose much 

more in tax revenue compared to anything that a developer would offer. Mr. Dr. Kozak explained 

the districts receive funding based on their socioeconomics wealth. Dr. Kozak added that Monroe’s 

is much higher than Woodbridge.  Mr. Parab stated that at the last council meeting it was stated 

that 4000 houses will be built in the next fifteen years and inquired if the district has the income 

revenue planned to support this. Dr. Kozak explained that with the new homes there also comes 

ratables which help to offset the costs.   

Carmine Nesti 32 Monroe Blvd. – stressed his concerns relating to the Boys Basketball coach. Ms. 

Kolupanowich responded that Dr. Kozak will look into the concerns and get back with Mr. Nesti.    

Doug Poye 4 Tamarack Road – inquired how many students from Monroe are attending charter 

schools. Dr. Kozak responded that there are currently nine students which the district is paying 

over $100,000.00 for. Dr. Kozak added that a concern is that some charter schools are actively 

recruiting students from certain districts where they receive more per student than other districts.   

Mr. Poye inquired if the district is looking at two parcels of land to select one or is it two parcels 

to build two buildings. Mr. Gorski responded that the district has looked at over twenty parcels of 

land and there are a couple that are attractive. Mr. Gorski added that more information will be 

forthcoming shortly. Mr. Poye inquired if there is a policy regarding the distance & times that 

school teams can play games. Mr. Poye stressed his concerns regarding a regular scheduled game 

that was held late on a Sunday night in New York. Ms. Kolupanowich responded that Dr. Kozak 

will look into it. 

Lisa Damore 3 Fallow Way – stressed her concerns regarding the lack of availability of Algebra I 

A/B classes for freshmen. Ms. Damore stated that there is not enough classes for all the students 

that wish to take it. Ms. Kolupanowich responded that they will look into it, 

Michele Cupo Bard 22 Bard Drive – Asked the Board to revisit full day Kindergarten. Ms. 

Kolupanowich responded that the Board can revisit it but space will definitely be a concern. 

Prakash Parab 33 Dayna Drive – inquired about the status, timeline & plan for the Ad Hoc 

Committee for State Aid Funding. Ms. Kolupanowich responded that the committee is just being 

assembled and once the committee begins to meet Mr. Chiarella will be providing reports for the 

public at the monthly board meeting.  

Kim Chaves 2 Horseshoe Court – spoke in regards to the Wilson Program. Ms. Chaves stressed 

that zero period is too early for her child (6th grade) and inquired if it can be scheduled into the day 

instead of world language. Ms. Kolupanowich responded that Dr. Kozak will look into it. 

 CLOSED SESSION RESOLUTION 

Be It Resolved, that the Board of Education of the Township of Monroe hereby moves to go into 

Closed Session, in accordance with the Sunshine Law, Chapter 231 of the Public Laws of 1975 

(N.J.S.A. 10:4-6 through 10:4-21), to discuss the following subject(s): 

 



Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on February 15, 2017 at 
the Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                          141 
 

7 
 

 Harassment, Intimidation and Bullying 

 

Following closed session, action may be taken. The discussion conducted in closed session can 

be disclosed to the public at such time as the need for confidentiality no longer exists. 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Riback and seconded by Mr. Chiarella that the members of the 

Board of Education go into closed session. Motion carried. 

 

Adjourned to Closed Session at 9:00 p.m. 

Returned to Public Meeting at 9:20 p.m. 

 

PUBLIC FORUM - None 

 

NEXT PUBLIC MEETING 

Ms. Kolupanowich stated that the next public meeting of the Monroe Township Board of 

Education will convene at 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, March 16, 2017. 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

A motion was made by Ms. DeMaio and seconded by Mr. Riback that the meeting be adjourned. 

Motion carried. The public meeting adjourned at 9:21 p.m. 

 

      Respectfully submitted, 

                                                    
      Michael C. Gorski, CPA 

                                                                        Business Administrator/Board Secretary   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

   

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on February 15, 2017 at 
the Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                          141 
 

8 
 

 


































	02.15.17 Public Minutes
	2.15.17

